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Anderson Hall is an example of the collegiate Gothic style of campus 
architecture. Its plan is rectangular, oriented east-west, with gabled 
pavillions at the east and west ends. The main section has a hip roof. 
All roof surfaces are finished in red clay tile. Other aspects of 
Andersen's exterior closely resemble its appearance upon completion in 
1913. Exterior fabric is red brick, laid in American bond. Building 
trim is stone, and includes finials over entrances, parapet coping, 
lintels, sills, decorative devices, and the building water table.

Alterations to Anderson Hall have been major; however, only two are 
evident from the exterior. The north entry has been blocked off, thus 
limiting access to the south, east, aad west entrances. The elimination 
of the north entry was undertaken to generate classroom and office space 
through the removal of the main stair. An exterior fire stair of concrete 
has been attached to Andersen's east end, and windows on that end have 
been enlarged to form doors accessible to the new stair.

See Continuation Sheet



01 SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD
PREHISTORIC

1400-1499

1500-1599

1600-1699

1700-1799

1800-1899

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
_ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC 

_ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC

—AGRICULTURE 

^ARCHITECTURE 

_ART

—COMMERCE

—COMMUNICATIONS

—COMMUNITY PLANNING

—CONSERVATION

—ECONOMICS 

JCEDUCATION

—ENGINEERING

—EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT

—INDUSTRY

—INVENTION

—LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

_LAW

—LITERATURE

—MILITARY

—MUSIC

—PHILOSOPHY

—POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

—RELIGION

—SCIENCE

—SCULPTURE

—SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN

—THEATER

—TRANSPORTATION

—OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES 1915 BUILDER/ARCHITECT William A. Edwards

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Anderson Hall is historically significant in the development of the 
University .of Florida as a center of state-supported higher learning. 
Although the structure's original designation, Language Hall, carries 
with it the connotation of a classroom building, Anderson was designed 
and constructed as a multiple purpose building. Its completion in 1913 
fulfilled the University's needs for teaching and office space for the 
English, language, history and mathematics departments and served as an 
administrative office area for the President, the Registrar, and the 
Graduate School. 1 Anderson Hall also provided needed space for student 
extracurricular activities and housed the University's early literary 
and debating societies.2

^Gainesville Daily Sun, February 6, 1913, p. 1, c. 1; September 25, 
1913, p. 1, c. 1; October 19, 1913, p. 2, c. 3.

2 "Report of the Ad Hoc Committee on the Preservation of Significant 
Building and On-Campus Sites, May 24, 1977," (report directed to University 
of Florida's Executive Vice President, Dr. Harold P. Hanson), pp. 2-3.
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As at other state universities, expressions of the 
collegiate gothic style of architecture on the University 
of Florida campus probably constitute a logical response to 
a felt need for a sense of dignity and timelessness. The 
founding of the completely new campus in 1905, the necessity 
for designing and constructing many new buildings in rapid 
succession, together with constraints imposed by dependence 
on legislative sources for the major portions of university 
funds, made for utilitarian expressions of the style. Thus, 
the architecture of early University of Florida buildings 
descends in general rather than specific fashion from earlier 
collegiate gothic designs.

The buildings are of substantial masonry construction, 
accented by the familiar stone arches and terra cotta trim; 
gables are steep, particularly for an area which is free of 
weather which would make steep roof pitches desireable. 
These elements of the prevailing style of college and university 
construction were utilized freely to achieve a specific pur­ 
pose at the new Gainesville campus, to create the impression 
of age and substance.
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The University of Florida traces its roots to 1853; how­ 
ever, that early date is significant for the foundation of 
the East Florida Seminary, only one of several components 
consolidated in the Buckman Act of 1905. That Act identified 
and addressed the need for a comprehensive system of higher 
education for Florida by creating three new institutions 
from the colleges, seminaries, and institutes which had hitherto 
received state monies. The new institutions included schools 
designated for women, blacks, and men. The last became the 
University of Florida.

After lengthy discussion, the Board of Control, set 
up under the Buckman Act to superintend higher education, 
decided to locate the men's institution at Gainesville, home 
of the East Florida Seminary. Since the Seminary buildings 
were in rather poor condition, the Board decided to establish 
a new campus for the University rather than renovate the 
older Seminary structures. A comprehensive plan for the 
new campus was designed by William A. Edwards of the South Carolina 
architectural firm of Edwards and Walter. Edwards later 
designed most of the campus buildings erected before the 
Second World War.

Edwards* campus gradually grew to include specialized and 
multiple-purpose structures devoted to both academic and 
vocational courses of instruction in the liberal arts, 
education, agriculture, the sciences, law, and other fields. 
The University of Florida was the state f s earliest concrete 
symbol of a commitment to comprehensive education for 
men, and the institution retained that position until 1947, 
when Florida State College for Women, successor to the 
Buckman Act's Florida Female College, was designated a co­ 
educational institution, Florida State University.
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Florida Alligator, September 24, 1912; October 16, 1913.
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Proctor, Samuel. "The University of Florida: Its Early Years, 1853- 
1906." Ph.D. Dissertation, University of Florida, 1958.

"Report of the Ad Hoc Committee on the Preservation of Significant 
Buildings and On-Campus Sites, May 24, 1977." Report directed 
to University of Florida's Executive Vice President, Dr. Harold 
P. Hanson.

University Record, May 1912, VII: 2, May 1913, VIII: 1.
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Situated on the south side of West University Avenue, along northern 
edge of the University of Florida campus, Gainesville, Florida; between 
Matherly Hall and Library West.


